

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Second Regular Session, 102nd General Assembly

SEVENTIETH DAY, WEDNESDAY, MAY 8, 2024

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

Speaker Plocher in the Chair.

Prayer by Reverend Monsignor Robert A. Kurwicky, Chaplain.

Trust in the Lord with all thine heart; and lean not unto thine own understanding. In all thy ways acknowledge Him, and He shall direct thy paths. (Proverbs 3:5, 6)

Our Glorious God, who has given us this morning with thunder and lightning, give us also Your powerful protective blessings as we lift our hearts to You in prayer in this historic chamber.

Grant us the blessing of wisdom, not only to make wise choices but also to find the right paths we should take. Lift high our vision that we may see clearly and be given courage to walk in Your way.

Grant us the blessing of love. Deepen our understanding, expand our sympathy, and enlarge our capacity for good. Give us grace to rise above arrogance that separates us and help us to enter the realm of high humility, where we are brought together in spirit and in love.

Grant us the blessing of faith. In these difficult and trying moments, may we keep our faith with You and in You, and may this faith keep us strong in our decisions here in the People's House.

And the House says, "Amen!"

The Pledge of Allegiance to the flag was recited.

The Journal of the sixty-ninth day was approved as printed.

Representative Hudson assumed the Chair.

Speaker Plocher resumed the Chair.

THIRD READING OF HOUSE BILLS

HCS#2 HB 1936, relating to facilities of historical significance, was taken up by Representative Wilson.

Representative Copeland assumed the Chair.

On motion of Representative Wilson, **HCS#2 HB 1936** was read the third time and passed by the following vote:

1702 *Journal of the House*

AYES: 108

Adams	Allen	Amato	Anderson	Appelbaum
Atchison	Aune	Bangert	Baringer	Barnes
Black	Bonacker	Bromley	Brown 149	Brown 16
Brown 27	Brown 87	Buchheit-Courtway	Burnett	Busick
Butz	Casteel	Christ	Christofanelli	Clemens
Collins	Copeland	Crossley	Davis	Diehl
Dinkins	Doll	Ealy	Evans	Falkner
Farnan	Fogle	Fountain Henderson	Francis	Gallick
Gray	Gregory	Griffith	Haden	Haley
Hein	Hinman	Hovis	Hurlbert	Ingle
Johnson 12	Johnson 23	Jones	Kalberloh	Kelley 127
Kelly 141	Knight	Lavender	Lewis 25	Lonsdale
Lovasco	Mackey	Mann	Marquart	Matthiesen
McGaugh	Merideth	Morse	Mosley	Myers
Nickson-Clark	Nurrenbern	Oehlerking	Owen	Patterson
Perkins	Peters	Plank	Proudie	Quade
Reedy	Reuter	Riggs	Riley	Roberts
Sassmann	Sauls	Schulte	Sharp 37	Sharpe 4
Shields	Smith 155	Smith 46	Steinhoff	Strickler
Taylor 84	Terry	Thomas	Van Schoiack	Veit
Waller	Weber	Wilson	Windham	Woods
Wright	Young	Mr. Speaker		

NOES: 038

Baker	Banderman	Billington	Burger	Chappell
Christensen	Coleman	Cook	Davidson	Deaton
Gragg	Haffner	Hardwick	Hausman	Henderson
Hudson	Justus	Keathley	McGill	McMullen
Murphy	O'Donnell	Pollitt	Pouche	Richey
Sander	Schnelting	Schwadron	Seitz	Smith 163
Sparks	Stinnett	Taylor 48	Thompson	Titus
Toalson Reisch	Voss	West		

PRESENT: 001

Unsicker

ABSENT WITH LEAVE: 015

Bland Manlove	Boggs	Bosley	Burton	Byrnes
Cupps	Hicks	Houx	Lewis 6	Mayhew
Parker	Phifer	Stacy	Stephens	Walsh Moore

VACANCIES: 001

Representative Copeland declared the bill passed.

HB 2571, relating to financial statements of certain local governments, was taken up by Representative McGaugh.

On motion of Representative McGaugh, **HB 2571** was read the third time and passed by the following vote:

AYES: 148

Adams	Allen	Amato	Anderson	Appelbaum
Atchison	Aune	Baker	Banderman	Bangert
Baringer	Barnes	Billington	Black	Bland Manlove
Boggs	Bonacker	Bromley	Brown 149	Brown 16
Brown 27	Brown 87	Buchheit-Courtway	Burger	Burnett
Busick	Butz	Byrnes	Casteel	Chappell
Christ	Christensen	Christofanelli	Clemens	Coleman
Collins	Cook	Copeland	Crossley	Davidson
Davis	Deaton	Diehl	Dinkins	Doll
Ealy	Evans	Falkner	Farnan	Fogle
Fountain Henderson	Francis	Gragg	Gray	Gregory
Griffith	Haden	Haffner	Haley	Hardwick
Hausman	Hein	Henderson	Hicks	Hinman
Hovis	Hudson	Hurlbert	Ingle	Johnson 12
Johnson 23	Jones	Justus	Kalberloh	Keathley
Kelley 127	Kelly 141	Knight	Lavender	Lewis 25
Lewis 6	Lonsdale	Lovasco	Mackey	Mann
Marquart	Matthiesen	McGaugh	McGill	McMullen
Merideth	Morse	Mosley	Murphy	Myers
Nickson-Clark	Nurrenbern	O'Donnell	Oehlerking	Owen
Patterson	Perkins	Peters	Plank	Pollitt
Pouche	Proudie	Quade	Reedy	Reuter
Richey	Riggs	Riley	Roberts	Sander
Sassmann	Sauls	Schnelting	Schulte	Schwadron
Seitz	Sharp 37	Sharpe 4	Shields	Smith 155
Smith 46	Sparks	Steinhoff	Stinnett	Strickler
Taylor 48	Taylor 84	Terry	Thomas	Titus
Toalson Reisch	Van Schoiack	Veit	Voss	Waller
Weber	West	Wilson	Windham	Woods
Wright	Young	Mr. Speaker		

NOES: 000

PRESENT: 000

ABSENT WITH LEAVE: 014

Bosley	Burton	Cupps	Gallick	Houx
Mayhew	Parker	Phifer	Smith 163	Stacy
Stephens	Thompson	Unsicker	Walsh Moore	

VACANCIES: 001

Representative Copeland declared the bill passed.

PERFECTION OF HOUSE BILLS - INFORMAL

HCS HBs 2619, 2365, 2448 & 2569, relating to expenditures by state departments, was taken up by Representative Hudson.

On motion of Representative Hudson, the title of **HCS HBs 2619, 2365, 2448 & 2569** was agreed to.

Representative Cook raised a point of order that a member was in violation of Rule 84.

Speaker Pro Tem Henderson assumed the Chair.

The Chair advised members to confine their comments to the question under debate.

Representative Copeland resumed the Chair.

Representative Burger moved the previous question.

Which motion was adopted by the following vote:

AYES: 106

Allen	Amato	Atchison	Baker	Banderman
Billington	Black	Boggs	Bonacker	Bromley
Brown 149	Brown 16	Buchheit-Courtway	Burger	Busick
Byrnes	Casteel	Chappell	Christ	Christensen
Christofanelli	Coleman	Collins	Cook	Copeland
Davidson	Davis	Deaton	Diehl	Dinkins
Falkner	Farnan	Francis	Gallick	Gragg
Gregory	Griffith	Haden	Haffner	Haley
Hardwick	Hausman	Henderson	Hicks	Hinman
Houx	Hovis	Hudson	Hurlbert	Johnson 23
Jones	Justus	Kalberloh	Keathley	Kelley 127
Kelly 141	Knight	Lewis 6	Lonsdale	Lovasco
Marquart	Matthiesen	McGaugh	McGill	McMullen
Morse	Murphy	Myers	O'Donnell	Oehlerking
Owen	Patterson	Perkins	Peters	Pollitt
Pouche	Proudie	Reedy	Reuter	Richey
Riggs	Riley	Roberts	Sassmann	Schnelting
Schulte	Seitz	Sharpe 4	Shields	Smith 155
Sparks	Stacy	Stephens	Stinnett	Taylor 48
Terry	Thomas	Titus	Toalson Reisch	Van Schoiack
Voss	Waller	West	Wilson	Wright
Mr. Speaker				

NOES: 042

Adams	Anderson	Appelbaum	Aune	Bangert
Baringer	Barnes	Brown 87	Burton	Butz
Clemens	Crossley	Doll	Ealy	Fogle
Fountain Henderson	Gray	Hein	Ingle	Johnson 12
Lavender	Lewis 25	Mackey	Mann	Merideth
Mosley	Nickson-Clark	Nurrenbern	Plank	Quade
Sander	Sauls	Sharp 37	Smith 46	Steinhoff
Strickler	Taylor 84	Walsh Moore	Weber	Windham
Woods	Young			

PRESENT: 000

ABSENT WITH LEAVE: 014

Bland Manlove	Bosley	Brown 27	Burnett	Cupps
Evans	Mayhew	Parker	Phifer	Schwadron
Smith 163	Thompson	Unsicker	Veit	

VACANCIES: 001

Representative Ingle raised a point of order that a member was in violation of Rule 76.

The Chair ruled the point of order not well taken.

Representative Ingle appealed the ruling of the Chair pursuant to Rule 10.

Speaker Plocher resumed the Chair.

The ruling of the Chair was sustained by the following vote, the ayes and noes having been demanded pursuant to Rule 16:

AYES: 100

Allen	Amato	Atchison	Baker	Banderman
Billington	Black	Boggs	Bonacker	Bromley
Brown 149	Brown 16	Buchheit-Courtway	Burger	Busick
Bymes	Casteel	Chappell	Christ	Christensen
Christofanelli	Coleman	Cook	Davidson	Davis
Deaton	Diehl	Dinkins	Falkner	Farnan
Francis	Gragg	Gregory	Griffith	Haden
Haffner	Haley	Hardwick	Hausman	Henderson
Hicks	Hinman	Houx	Hovis	Hudson
Hurlbert	Jones	Justus	Kalberloh	Keathley
Kelley 127	Kelly 141	Knight	Lewis 6	Lonsdale
Lovasco	Marquart	Matthiesen	McGaugh	McGirl
McMullen	Morse	Murphy	Myers	O'Donnell
Oehlerking	Owen	Patterson	Perkins	Peters
Pollitt	Pouche	Reedy	Reuter	Richey
Riggs	Riley	Roberts	Sassmann	Schnelting
Schulte	Seitz	Sharpe 4	Smith 155	Smith 163
Sparks	Stacy	Stephens	Stinnett	Taylor 48
Thomas	Titus	Toalson Reisch	Van Schoiack	Voss
Waller	West	Wilson	Wright	Mr. Speaker

NOES: 047

Adams	Anderson	Appelbaum	Aune	Bangert
Baringer	Barnes	Brown 27	Brown 87	Burton
Butz	Clemens	Collins	Crossley	Doll
Ealy	Fogle	Fountain Henderson	Gray	Hein
Ingle	Johnson 12	Johnson 23	Lavender	Lewis 25
Mackey	Mann	Merideth	Mosley	Nickson-Clark
Nurrenbern	Plank	Proudie	Quade	Sander
Sauls	Sharp 37	Smith 46	Steinhoff	Strickler
Taylor 84	Terry	Walsh Moore	Weber	Windham
Woods	Young			

PRESENT: 000

ABSENT WITH LEAVE: 015

Bland Manlove	Bosley	Burnett	Copeland	Cupps
Evans	Gallick	Mayhew	Parker	Phifer
Schwadron	Shields	Thompson	Unsicker	Veit

VACANCIES: 001

On motion of Representative Hudson, **HCS HBs 2619, 2365, 2448 & 2569** was adopted.

On motion of Representative Hudson, **HCS HBs 2619, 2365, 2448 & 2569** was ordered perfected and printed, the ayes and noes having been demanded pursuant to Rule 16:

AYES: 102

Allen	Amato	Atchison	Baker	Banderman
Billington	Black	Boggs	Bonacker	Bromley
Brown 149	Brown 16	Buchheit-Courtway	Burger	Busick
Byrnes	Casteel	Chappell	Christ	Christensen
Christofanelli	Coleman	Cook	Copeland	Davidson
Davis	Deaton	Diehl	Dinkins	Falkner
Farnan	Francis	Gragg	Gregory	Griffith
Haden	Haffner	Haley	Hardwick	Hausman
Henderson	Hicks	Hinman	Houx	Hovis
Hudson	Hurlbert	Jones	Justus	Kalberloh
Keathley	Kelley 127	Kelly 141	Knight	Lewis 6
Lonsdale	Lovasco	Marquart	Matthiesen	McGaugh
McGirl	McMullen	Morse	Murphy	Myers
O'Donnell	Oehlerking	Owen	Patterson	Perkins
Peters	Pollitt	Pouche	Reedy	Reuter
Richey	Riggs	Riley	Roberts	Sassmann
Schnelting	Schulte	Schwadron	Seitz	Sharpe 4
Smith 155	Smith 163	Sparks	Stacy	Stephens
Stinnett	Taylor 48	Thomas	Titus	Toalson Reisch
Van Schoiack	Voss	Waller	West	Wilson
Wright	Mr. Speaker			

NOES: 047

Adams	Anderson	Appelbaum	Aune	Bangert
Baringer	Barnes	Brown 27	Brown 87	Burton
Butz	Clemens	Collins	Crossley	Doll
Ealy	Fogle	Fountain Henderson	Gray	Hein
Ingle	Johnson 12	Johnson 23	Lavender	Lewis 25
Mackey	Mann	Merideth	Mosley	Nickson-Clark
Nurrenbern	Plank	Proudie	Quade	Sander
Sauls	Sharp 37	Smith 46	Steinhoff	Strickler
Taylor 84	Terry	Walsh Moore	Weber	Windham
Woods	Young			

PRESENT: 000

ABSENT WITH LEAVE: 013

Bland Manlove	Bosley	Burnett	Cupps	Evans
Gallick	Mayhew	Parker	Phifer	Shields
Thompson	Unsicker	Veit		

VACANCIES: 001

THIRD READING OF HOUSE BILLS - INFORMAL

HCS HB 2489, HCS HB 1906, HCS HB 1480 and HCS HB 2896 were placed on the House Bills for Third Reading Calendar.

On motion of Representative Burger, the House recessed until 4:00 p.m.

AFTERNOON SESSION

The hour of recess having expired, the House was called to order by Speaker Plocher.

Representative Baker suggested the absence of a quorum.

The following roll call indicated a quorum present:

AYES: 028

Anderson	Billington	Brown 149	Brown 16	Brown 27
Burton	Busick	Cook	Davis	Haden
Haffner	Kelley 127	Knight	Lonsdale	Lovasco
Matthiesen	McGill	McMullen	Morse	Peters
Roberts	Sander	Schulte	Shields	Smith 155
Titus	Van Schoiack	West		

NOES: 000

PRESENT: 064

Amato	Appelbaum	Baker	Banderman	Baringer
Barnes	Black	Boggs	Bonacker	Bromley
Buchheit-Courtway	Burger	Butz	Byrnes	Chappell
Christensen	Christofanelli	Dinkins	Falkner	Farnan
Gragg	Gray	Griffith	Haley	Hausman
Hein	Henderson	Hicks	Hinman	Houx
Hovis	Jones	Justus	Kalberloh	Lewis 6
McGaugh	Murphy	Myers	O'Donnell	Oehlerking
Patterson	Perkins	Plank	Pollitt	Pouche
Proudie	Quade	Reuter	Riley	Sassmann
Schwadron	Seitz	Sharpe 4	Sparks	Steinhoff
Taylor 48	Taylor 84	Terry	Thompson	Waller
Weber	Wilson	Young	Mr. Speaker	

ABSENT WITH LEAVE: 070

Adams	Allen	Atchison	Aune	Bangert
Bland Manlove	Bosley	Brown 87	Burnett	Casteel
Christ	Clemens	Coleman	Collins	Copeland
Crossley	Cupps	Davidson	Deaton	Diehl
Doll	Ealy	Evans	Fogle	Fountain Henderson
Francis	Gallick	Gregory	Hardwick	Hudson
Hurlbert	Ingle	Johnson 12	Johnson 23	Keathley
Kelly 141	Lavender	Lewis 25	Mackey	Mann
Marquart	Mayhew	Merideth	Mosley	Nickson-Clark

Nurrenbern	Owen	Parker	Phifer	Reedy
Richey	Riggs	Sauls	Schnelting	Sharp 37
Smith 163	Smith 46	Stacy	Stephens	Stinnett
Strickler	Thomas	Toalson Reisch	Unsicker	Veit
Voss	Walsh Moore	Windham	Woods	Wright

VACANCIES: 001

THIRD READING OF SENATE BILLS

HCS SB 1363, HCS SS SB 900 and **HCS SB 1039** were placed on the Informal Calendar.

THIRD READING OF SENATE BILLS - INFORMAL

HCS SS SB 900, relating to jails, was taken up by Representative Van Schoiack.

On motion of Representative Van Schoiack, the title of **HCS SS SB 900** was agreed to.

Representative Veit offered **House Amendment No. 1**.

House Amendment No. 1

AMEND House Committee Substitute for Senate Substitute for Senate Bill No. 900, Page 8, Section 221.523, Line 20, by inserting after all of said section and line the following:

"332.081. 1. Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the contrary, hospitals licensed under chapter 197 shall be authorized to employ any or all of the following oral health providers:

(1) A dentist licensed under this chapter for the purpose of treating on hospital premises those patients who present with a dental condition and such treatment is necessary to ameliorate the condition for which they presented such as severe pain or tooth abscesses;

(2) An oral and maxillofacial surgeon licensed under this chapter for the purpose of treating oral conditions that need to be ameliorated as part of treating the underlying cause of the patient's medical needs including, but not limited to, head and neck cancer, HIV or AIDS, severe trauma resulting in admission to the hospital, organ transplant, diabetes, or seizure disorders. It shall be a condition of treatment that such patients are admitted to the hospital on either an in- or out-patient basis; and

(3) A maxillofacial prosthodontist licensed under this chapter for the purpose of treating and supporting patients of a head and neck cancer team or other complex care or surgical team for the fabrication of appliances following ablative surgery, surgery to correct birth anomalies, extensive radiation treatment of the head or neck, or trauma-related surgery.

2. No person or other entity shall practice dentistry in Missouri or provide dental services as defined in section 332.071 unless and until the board has issued to the person a certificate certifying that the person has been duly registered as a dentist in Missouri or the board has issued such certificate to an entity that has been duly registered to provide dental services by licensed dentists and dental hygienists and unless and until the board has issued to the person a license, to be renewed each period, as provided in this chapter, to practice dentistry or as a dental hygienist, or has issued to the person or entity a permit, to be renewed each period, to provide dental services in Missouri. Nothing in this chapter shall be so construed as to make it unlawful for:

(1) A legally qualified physician or surgeon, who does not practice dentistry as a specialty, from extracting teeth;

(2) A dentist licensed in a state other than Missouri from making a clinical demonstration before a meeting of dentists in Missouri;

(3) Dental students in any accredited dental school to practice dentistry under the personal direction of instructors;

(4) Dental hygiene students in any accredited dental hygiene school to practice dental hygiene under the personal direction of instructors;

(5) A duly registered and licensed dental hygienist in Missouri to practice dental hygiene as defined in section 332.091;

(6) A dental assistant, certified dental assistant, or expanded functions dental assistant to be delegated duties as defined in section 332.093;

(7) A duly registered dentist or dental hygienist to teach in an accredited dental or dental hygiene school;

(8) A person who has been granted a dental faculty permit under section 332.183 to practice dentistry in the scope of his or her employment at an accredited dental school, college, or program in Missouri;

(9) A duly qualified anesthesiologist or nurse anesthetist to administer an anesthetic in connection with dental services or dental surgery;

(10) A person to practice dentistry in or for:

(a) The United States Armed Forces;

(b) The United States Public Health Service;

(c) Migrant, community, or health care for the homeless health centers provided in Section 330 of the Public Health Service Act (42 U.S.C. Section 254b);

(d) Federally qualified health centers as defined in Section 1905(l) (42 U.S.C. Section 1396d(l)) of the Social Security Act;

(e) Governmental entities, including county health departments; or

(f) The United States Veterans Bureau; or

(11) A dentist licensed in a state other than Missouri to evaluate a patient or render an oral, written, or otherwise documented dental opinion when providing testimony or records for the purpose of a civil or criminal action before any judicial or administrative proceeding of this state or other forum in this state.

3. No corporation shall practice dentistry as defined in section 332.071 unless that corporation is organized under the provisions of chapter 355 or 356 provided that a corporation organized under the provisions of chapter 355 and qualifying as an organization under 26 U.S.C. Section 501(c)(3) may only employ dentists and dental hygienists licensed in this state to render dental services to Medicaid recipients, low-income individuals who have available income below two hundred percent of the federal poverty level, and all participants in the SCHIP program, unless such limitation is contrary to or inconsistent with federal or state law or regulation. This subsection shall not apply to:

(1) A hospital licensed under chapter 197 that provides care and treatment only to children under the age of eighteen at which a person regulated under this chapter provides dental care within the scope of his or her license or registration;

(2) A federally qualified health center as defined in Section 1905(l) of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. Section 1396d(l)), or a migrant, community, or health care for the homeless health center provided for in Section 330 of the Public Health Services Act (42 U.S.C. Section 254b) at which a person regulated under this chapter provides dental care within the scope of his or her license or registration;

(3) A city or county health department organized under chapter 192 or chapter 205 at which a person regulated under this chapter provides dental care within the scope of his or her license or registration;

(4) A social welfare board organized under section 205.770, a city health department operating under a city charter, or a city-county health department at which a person regulated under this chapter provides dental care within the scope of his or her license or registration;

(5) Any entity that has received a permit from the dental board and does not receive compensation from the patient or from any third party on the patient's behalf at which a person regulated under this chapter provides dental care within the scope of his or her license or registration;

(6) Any hospital nonprofit corporation exempt from taxation under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended, that engages in its operations and provides dental services at facilities owned by a city, county, or other political subdivision of the state, **or any entity contracted with the state to provide care in a correctional center, as such term is defined in section 217.010**, at which a person regulated under this chapter provides dental care within the scope of his or her license or registration.

If any of the entities exempted from the requirements of this subsection are unable to provide services to a patient due to the lack of a qualified provider and a referral to another entity is made, the exemption shall extend to the person or entity that subsequently provides services to the patient.

4. No unincorporated organization shall practice dentistry as defined in section 332.071 unless such organization is exempt from federal taxation under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and provides dental treatment without compensation from the patient or any third party on their behalf as a part of a broader program of social services including food distribution. Nothing in this chapter shall prohibit organizations under this subsection from employing any person regulated by this chapter.

5. A dentist shall not enter into a contract that allows a person who is not a dentist to influence or interfere with the exercise of the dentist's independent professional judgment.

6. A not-for-profit corporation organized under the provisions of chapter 355 and qualifying as an organization under 26 U.S.C. Section 501(c)(3), an unincorporated organization operating pursuant to subsection 4 of this section, or any other person should not direct or interfere or attempt to direct or interfere with a licensed dentist's professional judgment and competent practice of dentistry. Nothing in this subsection shall be so construed as to make it unlawful for not-for-profit organizations to enforce employment contracts, corporate policy and procedure manuals, or quality improvement or assurance requirements.

7. All entities defined in subsection 3 of this section and those exempted under subsection 4 of this section shall apply for a permit to employ dentists and dental hygienists licensed in this state to render dental services, and the entity shall apply for the permit in writing on forms provided by the Missouri dental board. The board shall not charge a fee of any kind for the issuance or renewal of such permit. The provisions of this subsection shall not apply to a federally qualified health center as defined in Section 1905(l) of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. Section 1396d(l)).

8. Any entity that obtains a permit to render dental services in this state is subject to discipline pursuant to section 332.321. If the board concludes that the person or entity has committed an act or is engaging in a course of conduct that would be grounds for disciplinary action, the board may file a complaint before the administrative hearing commission. The board may refuse to issue or renew the permit of any entity for one or any combination of causes stated in subsection 2 of section 332.321. The board shall notify the applicant in writing of the reasons for the refusal and shall advise the applicant of his or her right to file a complaint with the administrative hearing commission as provided by chapter 621.

9. A federally qualified health center as defined in Section 1905(l) of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. Section 1396d(l)) shall register with the board. The information provided to the board as part of the registration shall include the name of the health center, the nonprofit status of the health center, sites where dental services will be provided, and the names of all persons employed by, or contracting with, the health center who are required to hold a license pursuant to this chapter. The registration shall be renewed every twenty-four months. The board shall not charge a fee of any kind for the issuance or renewal of the registration. The registration of the health center shall not be subject to discipline pursuant to section 332.321. Nothing in this subsection shall prohibit disciplinary action against a licensee of this chapter who is employed by, or contracts with, such health center for the actions of the licensee in connection with such employment or contract.

10. The board may promulgate rules and regulations to ensure not-for-profit corporations are rendering care to the patient populations as set forth herein, including requirements for covered not-for-profit corporations to report patient census data to the board. The provisions of this subsection shall not apply to a federally qualified health center as defined in Section 1905(l) of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. Section 1396d(l)).

11. All not-for-profit corporations organized or operated pursuant to the provisions of chapter 355 and qualifying as an organization under 26 U.S.C. Section 501(c)(3), or the requirements relating to migrant, community, or health care for the homeless health centers provided in Section 330 of the Public Health Service Act (42 U.S.C. Section 254b) and federally qualified health centers as defined in Section 1905(l) (42 U.S.C. Section 1396d(l)) of the Social Security Act, that employ persons who practice dentistry or dental hygiene in this state shall do so in accordance with the relevant laws of this state except to the extent that such laws are contrary to, or inconsistent with, federal statute or regulation."; and

Further amend said bill by amending the title, enacting clause, and intersectional references accordingly.

On motion of Representative Veit, **House Amendment No. 1** was adopted.

On motion of Representative Van Schoiack, **HCS SS SB 900, as amended**, was adopted.

On motion of Representative Van Schoiack, **HCS SS SB 900, as amended**, was read the third time and passed by the following vote:

AYES: 141

Adams	Amato	Anderson	Appelbaum	Aune
Baker	Banderman	Bangert	Baringer	Barnes
Billington	Black	Bland Manlove	Boggs	Bonacker
Bromley	Brown 149	Brown 27	Buchheit-Courtway	Burger
Burnett	Burton	Busick	Butz	Byrnes
Casteel	Chappell	Christ	Christensen	Christofanelli
Clemens	Collins	Cook	Copeland	Crossley
Davis	Diehl	Dinkins	Doll	Evans
Falkner	Farnan	Fogle	Fountain Henderson	Francis
Gallick	Gragg	Gray	Gregory	Griffith
Haden	Haffner	Haley	Hardwick	Hausman
Hein	Henderson	Hicks	Hinman	Houx
Hovis	Hudson	Hurlbert	Ingle	Johnson 12
Johnson 23	Jones	Justus	Kalberloh	Keathley
Kelley 127	Kelly 141	Knight	Lavender	Lewis 25
Lewis 6	Lonsdale	Lovasco	Mackey	Mann
Marquart	Matthiesen	McGaugh	McGill	McMullen
Merideth	Morse	Mosley	Murphy	Myers
Nickson-Clark	Nurrenbern	O'Donnell	Oehlerking	Owen
Patterson	Perkins	Peters	Plank	Pollitt
Pouche	Proudie	Quade	Reuter	Richey
Riggs	Riley	Roberts	Sassmann	Sauls
Schnelting	Schulte	Schwadron	Seitz	Sharp 37
Sharpe 4	Shields	Smith 155	Smith 163	Smith 46
Sparks	Steinhoff	Stephens	Stinnett	Strickler
Taylor 48	Taylor 84	Terry	Thomas	Titus
Van Schoiack	Veit	Voss	Waller	Walsh Moore
Weber	West	Wilson	Woods	Wright
Mr. Speaker				

NOES: 001

Sander

PRESENT: 000

ABSENT WITH LEAVE: 020

Allen	Atchison	Bosley	Brown 16	Brown 87
Coleman	Cupps	Davidson	Deaton	Ealy
Mayhew	Parker	Phifer	Reedy	Stacy
Thompson	Toalson Reisch	Unsicker	Windham	Young

VACANCIES: 001

Speaker Plocher declared the bill passed.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

Mr. Speaker: I am instructed by the Senate to inform the House of Representatives that the Senate has taken up and passed **HB 1495**.

Mr. Speaker: I am instructed by the Senate to inform the House of Representatives that the Senate has taken up and passed **HB 2057**.

Mr. Speaker: I am instructed by the Senate to inform the House of Representatives that the Senate has taken up and passed **SS HB 2062** entitled:

An act to repeal sections 140.010, 140.250, 140.420, 140.980, 140.981, 140.982, 140.983, 140.984, 140.985, 140.986, 140.987, 140.988, 140.991, 140.1000, 140.1006, 140.1009, 140.1012, 141.220, 141.230, 141.250, 141.270, 141.290, 141.300, 141.320, 141.330, 141.360, 141.410, 141.440, 141.500, 141.520, 141.535, 141.540, 141.550, 141.560, 141.570, 141.580, 141.610, 141.620, 141.680, 141.700, 141.820, 141.830, 141.840, 141.850, 141.860, 141.870, 141.880, 141.890, 141.900, 141.910, 141.920, 141.930, 141.931, 141.940, 141.950, 141.960, 141.970, 141.980, 141.984, 141.1009, and 249.255, RSMo, and section 140.190 as enacted by house bill no. 1606, one hundred first general assembly, second regular session, and section 140.190 as enacted by house bill no. 821, one hundredth general assembly, first regular session, and to enact in lieu thereof fifty-four new sections relating to the use of real property, with penalty provisions.

With Senate Amendment No. 2, Senate Amendment No. 3, Senate Amendment No. 4, Senate Amendment No. 5 and Senate Amendment No. 6.

Senate Amendment No. 2

AMEND Senate Substitute for House Bill No. 2062, Page 84, Section 436.337, Line 6, by inserting after all of said line the following:

“442.404. 1. As used in this section, the following terms shall mean:

(1) "Homeowners' association", a nonprofit corporation or unincorporated association of homeowners created under a declaration to own and operate portions of a planned community or other residential subdivision that has the power under the declaration to assess association members to pay the costs and expenses incurred in the performance of the association's obligations under the declaration or tenants-in-common with respect to the ownership of common ground or amenities of a planned community or other residential subdivision. This term shall not include a condominium unit owners' association as defined and provided for in subdivision (3) of section 448.1-103 or a residential cooperative;

(2) "Political signs", any fixed, ground-mounted display in support of or in opposition to a person seeking elected office or a ballot measure excluding any materials that may be attached;

(3) "Solar panel or solar collector", a device used to collect and convert solar energy into electricity or thermal energy, including but not limited to photovoltaic cells or panels, or solar thermal systems.

2. (1) No deed restrictions, covenants, or similar binding agreements running with the land shall prohibit or have the effect of prohibiting the display of political signs.

(2) A homeowners' association has the authority to adopt reasonable rules, subject to any applicable statutes or ordinances, regarding the time, size, place, number, and manner of display of political signs.

(3) A homeowners' association may remove a political sign without liability if such sign is placed within the common ground, threatens the public health or safety, violates an applicable statute or ordinance, is accompanied by sound or music, or if any other materials are attached to the political sign. Subject to the foregoing, a homeowners' association shall not remove a political sign from the property of a homeowner or impose any fine or penalty upon the homeowner unless it has given such homeowner three days after providing written notice to the homeowner, which notice shall specifically identify the rule and the nature of the violation.

3. (1) No deed restrictions, covenants, or similar binding agreements running with the land shall limit or prohibit, or have the effect of limiting or prohibiting, the installation of solar panels or solar collectors on the rooftop of any property or structure.

(2) A homeowners' association may adopt reasonable rules, subject to any applicable statutes or ordinances, regarding the placement of solar panels or solar collectors to the extent that those rules do not prevent the installation of the device, impair the functioning of the device, restrict the use of the device, or adversely affect the cost or efficiency of the device.

(3) The provisions of this subsection shall apply only with regard to rooftops that are owned, controlled, and maintained by the owner of the individual property or structure.

4. (1) No deed restrictions, covenants, or similar binding agreements running with the land shall prohibit or have the effect of prohibiting the display of sale signs on the property of a homeowner or property owner including, but not limited to, any yard on the property, or nearby street corners.

(2) A homeowners' association has the authority to adopt reasonable rules, subject to any applicable statutes or ordinances, regarding the time, size, place, number, and manner of display of sale signs.

(3) A homeowners' association may remove a sale sign without liability if such sign is placed within the common ground, threatens the public health or safety, violates an applicable statute or ordinance, is accompanied by sound or music, or if any other materials are attached to the sale sign. Subject to the foregoing, a homeowners' association shall not remove a sale sign from the property of a homeowner or property owner or impose any fine or penalty upon the homeowner or property owner unless it has given such homeowner or property owner three business days after the homeowner or property owner receives written notice from the homeowners' association, which notice shall specifically identify the rule and the nature of the alleged violation.

5. (1) No deed restrictions, covenants, or similar binding agreements running with the land shall prohibit or have the effect of prohibiting ownership or pasturing of up to six chickens on a lot that is two tenths of an acre or larger, including prohibitions against a single chicken coop designed to accommodate up to six chickens.

(2) A homeowners' association may adopt reasonable rules, subject to applicable statutes or ordinances, regarding ownership or pasturing of chickens, including a prohibition or restriction on ownership or pasturing of roosters.”; and

Further amend the title and enacting clause accordingly.

Senate Amendment No. 3

AMEND Senate Substitute for House Bill No. 2062, Page 86, Section 534.602, Line 85, by striking "twenty-four" and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

"forty-eight"; and

Further amend said page, Lines 93-95, by striking all of said lines; and

Further amend said bill and section, Page 87, Lines 96-107, by striking all of said lines; and

Further amend said section by renumbering the remaining subsections accordingly; and

Further amend said bill, Page 91, Section 534.604, Lines 16-17, by striking "E felony" and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

"A misdemeanor"; and

Further amend said bill and page, Section 569.200, Lines 4-5, by striking "E felony" and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

"A misdemeanor".

Senate Amendment No. 4

AMEND Senate Substitute for House Bill No. 2062, Page 91, Section 569.200, Line 5, by inserting after all of said line the following:

“640.144. 1. All community water systems shall be required to create a valve inspection program that includes:

- (1) Inspection of all valves every ten years;
- (2) Scheduled repair or replacement of broken valves; and

- (3) Within five years of August 28, 2020, identification of each shut-off valve location using a geographic information system or an alternative physical mapping system that accurately identifies the location of each valve.
2. All community water systems shall be required to create a hydrant inspection program that includes:
- (1) ~~[Annual]~~ **Scheduled** testing of every hydrant in the community water system;
 - (2) Scheduled repair or replacement of broken hydrants;
 - (3) A plan to flush every hydrant and dead-end main;
 - (4) Maintenance of records of inspections, tests, and flushings for six years; and
 - (5) Within five years of August 28, 2020, identification of each hydrant location using a geographic information system or an alternative physical mapping system that accurately identifies the location of each hydrant.
3. The provisions of this section shall not apply to any state parks, cities with a population of more than thirty thousand inhabitants, a county with a charter form of government and with more than six hundred thousand but fewer than seven hundred thousand inhabitants, a county with a charter form of government and with more than nine hundred fifty thousand inhabitants, or a public service commission regulated utility with more than thirty thousand customers.”; and

Further amend the title and enacting clause accordingly.

Senate Amendment No. 5

AMEND Senate Substitute for House Bill No. 2062, Page 5, Section 44.251, Line 110, by inserting after all of said line the following:

- “67.288. 1. For purposes of this section, the following terms mean:**
- (1) "Electric vehicle", any vehicle that operates, either partially or exclusively, on electrical energy from the grid or an off-board source that is stored onboard for a motive purpose;**
 - (2) "Electric vehicle charging station", a public or private parking space that is served by battery charging station equipment that has as its primary purpose the transfer of electric energy by conductive or inductive means to a battery or other energy storage device in an electric vehicle.**
- 2. Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the contrary, no political subdivision shall adopt any ordinance, resolution, regulation, code, or policy that requires electric vehicle charging stations or infrastructure for future installation of electric vehicle charging stations on any parking lot owned or leased to any church or nonprofit organization exempt from taxation under 26 U.S.C. Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Code of 1986, as amended.**
- 3. Nothing in this section shall prohibit a business owner or property owner from paying for the installation, maintenance, or operation of an electric vehicle charging station.”; and**

Further amend the title and enacting clause accordingly.

Senate Amendment No. 6

AMEND Senate Substitute for House Bill No. 2062, Page 83, Section 249.255, Line 18, by inserting after all of said line the following:

- “253.544. Sections 253.544 to 253.559 shall be known and may be cited as the "Missouri Historic, Rural Revitalization, and Regulatory Streamlining Act".**
- 253.545. As used in sections ~~[253.545]~~ **253.544** to 253.559, the following terms mean, unless the context requires otherwise:
- (1) "Applicable percentage":**
 - (a) For the rehabilitation of a property that receives or intends to receive a state tax credit under sections 135.350 to 135.363, twenty-five percent;**
 - (b) For the rehabilitation of a property located in a qualifying county approved for a state tax credit and that is not a property that receives or intends to receive a state tax credit under sections 135.350 to 135.363, thirty-five percent; or**
 - (c) For the rehabilitation of a property not located in a qualifying county approved for a tax credit, twenty-five percent;**

- (2) "Certified historic structure", a ~~[property]~~ **building** located in Missouri and **either:**
- (a) Listed individually on the National Register of Historic Places; **or**
 - (b) **Located in a National Register-listed historic district or a local district that has been certified by the United States Department of the Interior and certified by the Secretary of the Interior or the state historic preservation office as a contributing resource in the district;**
- ~~[(2)]~~ (3) "Deed in lieu of foreclosure or voluntary conveyance", a transfer of title from a borrower to the lender to satisfy the mortgage debt and avoid foreclosure;
- (4) **"Department", the department of economic development;**
- ~~[(3)]~~ (5) "Eligible property", property located in Missouri and offered or used for residential or business purposes;
- (6) **"Eligible recipient", an individual taxpayer or nonprofit entity incurring expenses in connection with an eligible property;**
- (7) **"Historic theater", any historic theater that is a certified historic structure or is located in a historic district;**
- (8) **"Historic school", any historic school that is a certified historic structure or that is located in a historic district;**
- ~~[(4)]~~ (9) "Leasehold interest", a lease in an eligible property for a term of not less than thirty years;
- ~~[(5)]~~ (10) "Principal", a managing partner, general partner, or president of a taxpayer;
- ~~[(6)]~~ "Projected net fiscal benefit", ~~the total net fiscal benefit to the state or municipality, less any state or local benefits offered to the taxpayer for a project, as determined by the department of economic development;~~
- ~~[(7)]~~ (11) "Qualified census tract", a census tract **or census block** with a poverty rate of twenty percent or higher as determined by a map and listing of census tracts which shall be published by the department ~~[of economic development]~~ and updated on a five-year cycle, and which map and listing shall depict census tracts with twenty percent poverty rate or higher, grouped by census tracts with twenty percent to forty-two percent poverty, and forty-two percent to eighty-one percent poverty as determined by the most current five-year figures published by the American Community Survey conducted by the United States Census Bureau;
- ~~[(8)]~~ "Structure in a certified historic district", ~~a structure located in Missouri which is certified by the department of natural resources as contributing to the historic significance of a certified historic district listed on the National Register of Historic Places, or a local district that has been certified by the United States Department of the Interior;~~
- (12) **"Qualified rehabilitation standards", the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation, codified under 36 CFR 67;**
- (13) **"Qualifying county", any county or portion thereof in this state that is not:**
- (a) **Within a city with more than four hundred thousand inhabitants and located in more than one county; or**
 - (b) **A city not within a county;**
- ~~[(9)]~~ (14) "Taxpayer", any person, firm, partnership, trust, estate, limited liability company, or corporation.
- 253.550. 1. (1) Any taxpayer incurring costs and expenses for the rehabilitation of eligible property, which is a certified historic structure or structure in a certified historic district, may, subject to the provisions of this section and section 253.559, receive a credit against the taxes imposed pursuant to chapters 143 and 148, except for sections 143.191 to 143.265, on such taxpayer in an amount equal to twenty-five percent of the total costs and expenses of rehabilitation incurred after January 1, 1998, which shall include, but not be limited to, qualified rehabilitation expenditures as defined under Section 47(c)(2)(A) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the related regulations thereunder, provided the rehabilitation costs associated with rehabilitation and the expenses exceed fifty percent of the total basis in the property and the rehabilitation meets standards consistent with the standards of the Secretary of the United States Department of the Interior for rehabilitation as determined by the state historic preservation officer of the Missouri department of natural resources.
- (2) **Any taxpayer incurring costs and expenses for the rehabilitation of eligible property that is in a qualifying county and is a certified historic structure shall, subject to the provisions of this section and section 253.559, receive a credit against the taxes imposed under chapters 143 and 148, excluding withholding tax imposed under sections 143.191 to 143.265, on such taxpayer in an amount equal to thirty-five percent of the total costs and expenses of rehabilitation incurred on or after July 1, 2024. Ten percent of the total costs and expenses of rehabilitation upon which the tax credit is based may be incurred for investigation assessments and building stabilization before the taxpayer submits the application for tax credits under sections 253.544**

to 253.559. Such total costs and expenses of rehabilitation shall include, but not be limited to, qualified rehabilitation expenditures as defined under 26 U.S.C. Section 47(c)(2)(A), as amended, and related regulations, if:

(a) Such qualified rehabilitation expenditures exceed fifty percent of the total basis in the property; and

(b) The rehabilitation meets the qualified rehabilitation standards of the Secretary of the United States Department of the Interior for rehabilitation of historic structures.

(3) State historic rehabilitation standards shall not be more restrictive than the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation set forth under 36 CFR 67.

2. (1) ~~During the period beginning on January 1, 2010, but ending on or after June 30, 2010, the department of economic development shall not approve applications for tax credits under the provisions of subsections 4 and 10 of section 253.559 which, in the aggregate, exceed seventy million dollars, increased by any amount of tax credits for which approval shall be rescinded under the provisions of section 253.559. For each fiscal year beginning on or after July 1, 2010, but ending before June 30, 2018, the department of economic development shall not approve applications for tax credits under the provisions of subsections 4 and 10 of section 253.559 which, in the aggregate, exceed one hundred forty million dollars, increased by any amount of tax credits for which approval shall be rescinded under the provisions of section 253.559. For each fiscal year beginning on or after July 1, 2018;~~ The department ~~[of economic development]~~ shall not approve applications for tax credits **for properties not located in a qualified census tract** under the provisions of subsections ~~[4] 6 and [40] 12~~ of section 253.559 which, in the aggregate, exceed ninety million dollars, increased by any amount of tax credits for which approval shall be rescinded under the provisions of section 253.559. The limitations provided under this subsection shall not apply to applications approved under the provisions of subsection ~~[4] 6~~ of section 253.559 for projects to receive less than two hundred seventy-five thousand dollars in tax credits.

(2) For each fiscal year beginning on or after July 1, 2018, the department shall authorize an amount up to, but not to exceed, an additional thirty million dollars in tax credits issued under subsections ~~[4] 6 and [40] 12~~ of section 253.559, provided that such tax credits are authorized solely for projects located in a qualified census tract. **Projects that receive preliminary approval that are located within a qualified census tract may receive an authorization of tax credit under either subdivision (1) of this subsection or this subdivision, but such projects shall first be authorized from the tax credit amount in this subdivision before being authorized from the tax credit amount in subdivision (1) of this subsection.**

(3) For each fiscal year beginning on or after July 1, 2018, if the maximum amount of tax credits allowed in any fiscal year as provided under subdivisions (1) and (2) of this subsection is authorized, the maximum amount of tax credits allowed under ~~[subdivision (1)]~~ **subdivisions (1) and (2)** of this subsection shall be adjusted by the percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers, or its successor index, as such index is defined and officially reported by the United States Department of Labor, or its successor agency. Only one such adjustment shall be made for each instance in which the provisions of this subdivision apply. The director of the department ~~[of economic development]~~ shall publish such adjusted amount.

3. (1) For all applications for tax credits approved on or after January 1, 2010, no more than two hundred fifty thousand dollars in tax credits may be issued for eligible costs and expenses incurred in the rehabilitation of an eligible property ~~[which]~~ **that is a [nonincome] non-income-producing single-family[, owner-occupied] residential property occupied by the taxpayer applicant or any relative within the third degree of consanguinity or affinity of such applicant and that is either a certified historic structure or a structure in a certified historic district.**

(2) **For all applications for tax credits, an amount equal to the applicable percentage may be issued for eligible costs and expenses incurred in the rehabilitation of an eligible property that is a non-income-producing single-family residential property occupied by the taxpayer applicant or any relative within the third degree of consanguinity or affinity of such applicant and that is either a certified historic structure or a structure in a certified historic district. For properties not located in a qualifying county, tax credits shall not be issued under this subdivision unless the property is located in a distressed community, as defined under section 135.530.**

4. The limitations on tax credit authorization provided under the provisions of subsection 2 of this section shall not apply to:

(1) Any application submitted by a taxpayer, which has received approval from the department prior to October 1, 2018; or

(2) Any taxpayer applying for tax credits, provided under this section, which, on or before October 1, 2018, has filed an application with the department evidencing that such taxpayer:

(a) Has incurred costs and expenses for an eligible property which exceed the lesser of five percent of the total project costs or one million dollars and received an approved Part I from the Secretary of the United States Department of Interior; or

(b) Has received certification, by the state historic preservation officer, that the rehabilitation plan meets the **qualified rehabilitation** standards [~~consistent with the standards of the Secretary of the United States Department of the Interior~~], and the rehabilitation costs and expenses associated with such rehabilitation shall exceed fifty percent of the total basis in the property.

5. A single-resource certified historic structure of more than one million gross square feet with a Part I approval or on the National Register before January 1, 2024, shall be subject to the dollar caps under subsection 2 of section 253.550, provided that, for any such projects that are eligible for tax credits in an amount exceeding sixty million dollars, the total amount of tax credits for such project counted toward the annual limits provided in subsection 2 of section 253.550 shall be spread over a period of six years with one-sixth of such amount allocated each year if:

(1) The project otherwise meets all the requirements of this section;

(2) The project meets the ten percent incurred costs test under subsection 9 of section 253.559 within thirty-six months after an award is issued; and

(3) The taxpayer agrees with the department of economic development, on a form prescribed by the department, to then claim the entire award of the original "state historical tax credits" over three state fiscal years with the initial year being the calendar year when the tax credits are issued.

253.557. 1. If the amount of such credit exceeds the total tax liability for the year in which the rehabilitated property is placed in service, the amount that exceeds the state tax liability may be carried back to any of the three preceding years and carried forward for credit against the taxes imposed pursuant to chapter 143 and chapter 148, except for sections 143.191 to 143.265 for the succeeding ten years, or until the full credit is used, whichever occurs first. Not-for-profit entities[;] including, but not limited to, corporations organized as not-for-profit corporations pursuant to chapter 355 shall be [~~ineligible~~] **eligible** for the tax credits authorized under sections [~~253.545 through 253.564~~] **253.544 to 253.559**. Taxpayers eligible for [~~such~~] tax credits may transfer, sell, or assign the credits. Credits granted to a partnership, a limited liability company taxed as a partnership, or multiple owners of property shall be passed through to the partners, members, or owners respectively pro rata or pursuant to an executed agreement among the partners, members, or owners documenting an alternate distribution method.

2. The assignee of the tax credits, hereinafter the assignee for purposes of this subsection, may use acquired credits to offset up to one hundred percent of the tax liabilities otherwise imposed pursuant to chapter 143 and chapter 148, except for sections 143.191 to 143.265. The assignor shall perfect such transfer by notifying the department [~~of economic development~~] in writing within thirty calendar days following the effective date of the transfer and shall provide any information as may be required by the department [~~of economic development~~] to administer and carry out the provisions of this section.

253.559. 1. To obtain approval for tax credits allowed under sections [~~253.545~~] **253.544** to 253.559, a taxpayer shall submit an application for tax credits to the department [~~of economic development~~]. **The department shall establish an application cycle that allows for year-round submission and year-round receipt and review of such applications.** Each application for approval, including any applications received for supplemental allocations of tax credits as provided under subsection [~~10~~] **12** of this section, shall be prioritized for review and approval, in the order of the date on which the application was postmarked, with the oldest postmarked date receiving priority. Applications postmarked on the same day shall go through a lottery process to determine the order in which such applications shall be reviewed.

2. Each application shall be reviewed by the department [~~of economic development~~] for approval. In order to receive approval, an application, other than applications submitted under the provisions of subsection [~~10~~] **12** of this section, shall include:

(1) Proof of ownership or site control. Proof of ownership shall include evidence that the taxpayer is the fee simple owner of the eligible property, such as a warranty deed or a [~~closing statement~~] **county assessor record as proof of ownership**. Proof of site control may be evidenced by a leasehold interest or an option to acquire such an interest. If the taxpayer is in the process of acquiring fee simple ownership, proof of site control shall include an executed sales contract or an executed option to purchase the eligible property;

(2) Floor plans of the existing structure, architectural plans, and, where applicable, plans of the proposed alterations to the structure, as well as proposed additions;

(3) The estimated cost of rehabilitation, the anticipated total costs of the project, the actual basis of the property, as shown by proof of actual acquisition costs, the anticipated total labor costs, the estimated project start date, and the estimated project completion date;

(4) Proof that the property is an eligible property and a certified historic structure or a structure in a certified historic district **or part 1 of a federal application or a draft national register of historic places nomination has been submitted to the state historic preservation office. In such instances, the application may proceed as a preliminary application concurrent with the associated federal process for nomination to the National Register of Historic Places;**

(5) A copy of ~~all~~ land use ~~and building approvals reasonably necessary for the commencement of the project~~ plans; and

(6) Any other information ~~which~~ the department ~~[of economic development]~~ may reasonably require to review the project for approval.

Only the property for which a property address is provided in the application shall be reviewed for approval. Once selected for review, a taxpayer shall not be permitted to request the review of another property for approval in the place of the property contained in such application. Any disapproved application shall be removed from the review process. If an application is removed from the review process, the department ~~[of economic development]~~ shall notify the taxpayer in writing of the decision to remove such application. Disapproved applications shall lose priority in the review process. A disapproved application, which is removed from the review process, may be resubmitted, but shall be deemed to be a new submission for purposes of the priority procedures described in this section.

3. (1) In evaluating an application for tax credits submitted under this section, the department ~~[of economic development]~~ shall also consider:

(a) The amount of projected net fiscal benefit of the project to the state and local municipality ~~[-and the period in which the state and municipality would realize such net fiscal benefit]~~ **as calculated based on reasonable methods;**

(b) The overall size and quality of the proposed project, including, **but not limited to:**

a. The estimated number of new jobs **or housing units, or both**, to be created by the project~~[-];~~

b. **The estimated number of construction jobs and professional jobs associated with the project that are included in total project costs;**

c. **Capital improvements created by a project and the potential of future community investments and improvements;**

d. **Increased revenues from sales or property taxes;**

e. The potential multiplier effect of the project~~[-];~~ and

f. **Other similar factors; and**

(c) ~~[The level of economic distress in the area; and~~

~~(d)]~~ Input from the local elected officials in the local municipality in which the proposed project is located as to the importance of the proposed project to the municipality. ~~[For any proposed project in any city not within a county, input from the local elected officials shall include, but shall not be limited to, the president of the board of aldermen.]~~

(2) The provisions of this subsection shall not apply to **historic schools or theaters** or applications for projects to receive less than two hundred seventy-five thousand dollars in tax credits.

4. (1) **The department shall promptly notify the state historic preservation office of each preliminary application for tax credits. After receipt of such notice, the state historic preservation office shall determine whether a rehabilitation satisfies the qualified rehabilitation standards within sixty days of a taxpayer filing an initial application for tax credits. The determination shall be based upon evidence that the rehabilitation will meet qualified rehabilitation standards, and that evidence shall consist of one of the following:**

(a) **Preliminary approval by the state historic preservation office; or**

(b) **An approved part 2 of the federal application, which the state historic preservation office shall forward directly to the department without any additional review by such office.**

(2) **If the state historic preservation office approves the application for tax credits within the sixty-day determination period established in subdivision (1) of this subsection, such office shall forward the application with any review comments to the National Park Service and shall forward any such review comments to the applicant. If such office fails to approve the application within the sixty-day determination period, such office shall forward the application without any comments to the National Park Service and shall have no further opportunity to submit any comments on such application.**

(3) Conditions on a state preliminary application or on part 2 of a federal application shall not delay preliminary state approval but shall be addressed by the applicant for final approval of such application.

(4) Any application for state tax credits that does not include an application for federal tax credits or a nomination to the federal National Register of Historic Places shall be reviewed by the state historic preservation office within sixty days of a notice received under subdivision (1) of this subsection.

(5) (a) An application for state tax credits may provide information indicating that the project is a phased rehabilitation project as described under 26 U.S.C. Section 47, as amended. Such application for a phased rehabilitation project shall include at least the following:

a. A schedule of the phases of the project with a beginning and end date for each phase and the expected costs for the whole project. The applicant may submit detailed plans for the project at a later time within the application process;

b. The adjusted total basis of such project, which shall be submitted with the schedule of phases of the project; and

c. A statement that the applicant agrees to begin each phase of such project within twelve months of the start date for such phase listed in the schedule of the phases.

(b) The applicant may submit a preliminary certification of costs upon the completion of each phase of the project.

(c) Upon approval of the cost certification submitted and the work completed on each phase of such project, the department shall issue eighty percent of the amount of the state tax credit for which the taxpayer is approved under this section. The remaining twenty percent of the amount of the state tax credit for which the taxpayer is approved under this section shall be issued upon the final approval of the project under this section.

(6) If the department determines that the amount of tax credits issued to a taxpayer under subdivision (5) of this subsection is in excess of the total amount of tax credits such taxpayer is eligible to receive, the department shall notify such taxpayer, and such taxpayer shall repay the department an amount equal to such excess.

5. If the department [~~of economic development~~] deems the application sufficient, the taxpayer shall be notified in writing of the approval for an amount of tax credits equal to the amount provided under section 253.550 less any amount of tax credits previously approved. Such approvals shall be granted to applications in the order of priority established under this section and shall require full compliance thereafter with all other requirements of law as a condition to any claim for such credits. If the department [~~of economic development~~] disapproves an application, the taxpayer shall be notified in writing of the reasons for such disapproval. A disapproved application may be resubmitted. **If the scope of a project for which an application has been approved under this section materially changes, the taxpayer shall be eligible to receive additional tax credits in the year in which the department is notified of and approves of such change in scope, subject to the provisions of subsection 2 of section 253.550 and subsection 7 of this section, if applicable; however, if such project was originally approved prior to August 28, 2018, the department shall evaluate the change in scope of the project under the criteria in effect prior to such date. A change in project scope shall be considered material under this subsection if:**

(1) The project was not previously subject to a material change in scope for which additional tax credits were approved; and

(2) The requested amount of tax credits for the project after the change in scope is higher than the originally approved amount of tax credits.

~~[5-]~~ 6. Following approval of an application, the identity of the taxpayer contained in such application shall not be modified except:

(1) The taxpayer may add partners, members, or shareholders as part of the ownership structure, so long as the principal remains [~~the same~~] **a principal of the taxpayer**, provided however, that subsequent to the commencement of renovation and the expenditure of at least ten percent of the proposed rehabilitation budget, removal of the principal for failure to perform duties and the appointment of a new principal thereafter shall not constitute a change of the principal; or

(2) Where the ownership of the project is changed due to a foreclosure, deed in lieu of a foreclosure or voluntary conveyance, or a transfer in bankruptcy.

~~[6-]~~ 7. In the event that the department [~~of economic development~~] grants approval for tax credits equal to the total amount available **or authorized, as applicable**, under subsection 2 of section 253.550, or sufficient that

when totaled with all other approvals, the amount available **or authorized, as applicable**, under subsection 2 of section 253.550 is exhausted, all taxpayers with applications then awaiting approval or thereafter submitted for approval shall be notified by the department [~~of economic development~~] that no additional approvals shall be granted during the fiscal year and shall be notified of the priority given to such taxpayer's application then awaiting approval. Such applications shall be kept on file by the department [~~of economic development~~] and shall be considered for approval for tax credits in the order established in this section in the event that additional credits become available due to the rescission of approvals or when a new fiscal year's allocation of credits becomes available for approval **or authorized, as applicable**.

[7-] **8.** All taxpayers with applications receiving approval on or after July 1, 2019, shall submit within [~~sixty~~] **one hundred twenty** days following the award of credits evidence of the capacity of the applicant to finance the costs and expenses for the rehabilitation of the eligible property in the form of a line of credit or letter of commitment subject to the lender's termination for a material adverse change impacting the extension of credit. If the department [~~of economic development~~] determines that a taxpayer has failed to comply with the requirements under this subsection, then the department shall notify the applicant of such failure and the applicant shall have a thirty-day period from the date of such notice to submit additional evidence to remedy the failure.

[8-] **9.** All taxpayers with applications receiving approval on or after the effective date of this act shall commence rehabilitation within [~~nine~~] **twenty-four** months of the date of issuance of the letter from the department [~~of economic development~~] granting the approval for tax credits. "Commencement of rehabilitation" shall mean that as of the date in which actual physical work, contemplated by the architectural plans submitted with the application, has begun, the taxpayer has incurred no less than ten percent of the estimated costs of rehabilitation provided in the application. Taxpayers with approval of a project shall submit evidence of compliance with the provisions of this subsection. **Taxpayers shall notify the department of any loss of site control or of any failure to exercise any option to obtain site control within the prescribed time period within ten days of such loss or failure.** If the department [~~of economic development~~] determines that a taxpayer has **lost or failed to obtain site control of the eligible property or otherwise** failed to comply with the requirements provided under this section, the approval for the amount of tax credits for such taxpayer shall be rescinded [~~and such amount of tax credits~~]. **A taxpayer may voluntarily forfeit such approval at any time by written notice to the department. Any approval rescinded or forfeited under this subsection shall then be included in the total amount of tax credits available in the year of such rescission or forfeiture,** provided under subsection 2 of section 253.550, from which approvals may be granted. Any taxpayer whose approval [~~shall be subject to rescission~~] **is rescinded or forfeited under this subsection** shall be notified of such from the department [~~of economic development~~] and, upon receipt of such notice, may submit a new application for the project. **If a taxpayer's approval is rescinded or forfeited under this subsection and such taxpayer later submits a new application for the same project, any expenditures eligible for tax credits under section 253.550 that are incurred by such taxpayer from and after the date of the rescinded or forfeited approval shall remain eligible expenditures for the purposes of determining the amount of tax credits that may be approved under section 253.550.**

[9-] **10. (1) (a)** To claim the credit authorized under sections [~~253.550~~] **253.544** to 253.559, a taxpayer with approval shall apply for final approval and issuance of tax credits from the department [~~of economic development~~], which [~~in consultation with the department of natural resources,~~] shall determine the final amount of eligible rehabilitation costs and expenses and whether the completed rehabilitation meets the **qualified rehabilitation** standards [~~of the Secretary of the United States Department of the Interior for rehabilitation as determined by the state historic preservation officer of the Missouri department of natural resources~~].

(b) Evidence that the completed rehabilitation meets the qualified rehabilitation standards shall be shown by one of the following:

- a. Final approval by the state historic preservation office; or
- b. An approved part 3 of the federal application.

(c) The state historic preservation office shall review each final application within sixty days and then forward the application to the National Park Service and send copies of any review comments to the applicant. If the state historic preservation office fails to review the application within sixty days, the application shall be forwarded without comments to the National Park Service and the state historic preservation office shall have no further opportunity to submit comments on such application.

(d) An award of tax credits under sections 253.544 to 253.559 shall be contingent on and awarded upon the listing of such eligible property on the National Register of Historic Places.

(2) Within seventy-five days of the department's receipt of all materials required by the department for an application for final approval and issuance of tax credits, which shall include a state approval by the state historic preservation office or an approved part 3 of the federal application for projects receiving

federal rehabilitation credits, the department shall issue to the taxpayer tax credit certificates in the amount of seventy-five percent of the lesser of:

(a) The total amount of the tax credits for which the taxpayer is eligible as provided in the taxpayer's certification of qualified expenses submitted with an application for final approval; or

(b) The total amount of tax credits approved for such project under subsection 3 of this section, including any amounts approved in connection with a material change in the scope of the project.

(3) Within one hundred twenty days of the department's receipt of all materials required by the department for an application of final approval and issuance of tax credits for a project, the department shall, unless such project is under appeal under subsection 14 of this section:

(a) Make a final determination of the total costs and expenses of rehabilitation and the amount of tax credits to be issued for such costs and expenses;

(b) Notify the taxpayer in writing of its final determination; and

(c) Issue to the taxpayer tax credit certificates in an amount equal to the remaining amount of tax credits such taxpayer is eligible to receive, as determined by the department, but was not issued in the initial tax credit issuance under subdivision (2) of this subsection.

(4) If the department determines that the amount of tax credits issued to a taxpayer in the initial tax credit issuance under subdivision (2) of this subsection is in excess of the total amount of tax credits such taxpayer is eligible to receive, the department shall notify such taxpayer, and such taxpayer shall repay the department an amount equal to such excess.

(5) For financial institutions credits authorized pursuant to sections ~~[253.550 to 253.561]~~ **253.544 to 253.559** shall be deemed to be economic development credits for purposes of section 148.064. The approval of all applications and the issuing of certificates of eligible credits to taxpayers shall be performed by the department ~~[of economic development]~~. The department ~~[of economic development]~~ shall inform a taxpayer of final approval by letter and shall issue, to the taxpayer, tax credit certificates. The taxpayer shall attach the certificate to all Missouri income tax returns on which the credit is claimed.

~~[10-]~~ **11.** Except as expressly provided in this subsection, tax credit certificates shall be issued in the final year that costs and expenses of rehabilitation of the project are incurred, or within the twelve-month period immediately following the conclusion of such rehabilitation. In the event the amount of eligible rehabilitation costs and expenses incurred by a taxpayer would result in the issuance of an amount of tax credits in excess of the amount provided under such taxpayer's approval granted under subsection ~~[4]~~ **6** of this section, such taxpayer may apply to the department for issuance of tax credits in an amount equal to such excess. Applications for issuance of tax credits in excess of the amount provided under a taxpayer's application shall be made on a form prescribed by the department. Such applications shall be subject to all provisions regarding priority provided under subsection 1 of this section.

~~[11-]~~ **12.** The department ~~[of economic development]~~ shall determine, on an annual basis, the overall economic impact to the state from the rehabilitation of eligible property.

13. (1) With regard to an application submitted under sections **253.544 to 253.559**, an applicant or an applicant's duly authorized representative may appeal any official decision, including all preliminary or final approvals, denials of approvals, or dollar amounts of issued tax credits, made by the department of economic development or the state historic preservation office. Such an appeal shall constitute an administrative review of the decision and shall not be conducted as an adjudicative proceeding.

(2) The department shall establish an equitable appeals process.

(3) The appeals process shall incorporate an independent review panel consisting of members of the private sector and the department.

(4) The department shall name an independent appeals officer as chair.

(5) An appeal shall be submitted to the designated appeals officer or review panel in writing within thirty days of receipt by the applicant or the applicant's duly authorized representative of the decision that is the subject of the appeal and shall include all information the appellant wishes the appeals officer or review panel to consider in deciding the appeal.

(6) Within fourteen days of receipt of an appeal, the appeals officer or review panel shall notify the department of economic development or the state historic preservation office that an appeal is pending, identify the decision being appealed, and forward a copy of the information submitted by the appellant. The department of economic development or the state historic preservation office may submit a written response to the appeal within thirty days.

(7) The appellant shall be entitled to one meeting with the appeals officer or review panel to discuss the appeal, and the appeals officer or review panel may schedule additional meetings at the officer's or panel's discretion. The department of economic development or the state historic preservation office may appear at any such meeting.

(8) The appeals officer or review panel shall consider the record of the decision in question; any further written submissions by the appellant, department of economic development, or state historic preservation office; and other available information and shall deliver a written decision to all parties as promptly as circumstances permit but no later than ninety days after the initial receipt of an appeal by the appeals officer or review panel.

(9) The appeals officer and the members of the review panel shall serve without compensation.”; and

Further amend the title and enacting clause accordingly.

In which the concurrence of the House is respectfully requested.

Mr. Speaker: I am instructed by the Senate to inform the House of Representatives that the Senate has taken up and adopted **HCS SS SCS SB 912** and has taken up and passed **HCS SS SCS SB 912**.

Mr. Speaker: I am instructed by the Senate to inform the House of Representatives that the Senate has taken up and adopted **HCS SS SB 1359, as amended**, and has taken up and passed **HCS SS SB 1359, as amended**.

REFERRAL OF HOUSE BILLS

The following House Bills were referred to the Committee indicated:

SS HB 2062, as amended - Fiscal Review

HB 2240 - Fiscal Review

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Committee on Economic Development, Chairman Hudson reporting:

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Economic Development, to which was referred **SB 1388**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (13): Allen, Amato, Barnes, Brown (16), Casteel, Christ, Gallick, Hausman, Hudson, Smith (155), Weber, Wilson and Young

Noes (2): Gray and Johnson (23)

Absent (1): Thompson

Committee on Emerging Issues, Chairman Hardwick reporting:

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Emerging Issues, to which was referred **SS SCS SB 735**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (10): Davidson, Diehl, Farnan, Gallick, Haffner, Hardwick, Hinman, Hurlbert, Jones and Schnelting

Noes (3): Aune, Johnson (12) and Mann

Present (1): Smith (46)

Absent (0)

Committee on General Laws, Chairman Riley reporting:

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on General Laws, to which was referred **SS SB 1111**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (15): Copeland, Crossley, Hicks, Hudson, Ingle, Justus, Lovasco, Mackey, Matthiesen, McMullen, Merideth, Myers, Reuter, Riley and Weber

Noes (0)

Absent (2): Baker and Parker

Special Committee on Public Policy, Chairman Thompson reporting:

Mr. Speaker: Your Special Committee on Public Policy, to which was referred **SCS SCR 24 & 25**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (4): Houx, Hudson, Kelly (141) and Thompson

Noes (0)

Absent (3): Knight, Sauls and Sharp (37)

Mr. Speaker: Your Special Committee on Public Policy, to which was referred **SS SB 751**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (6): Houx, Kelly (141), Knight, Sauls, Sharp (37) and Thompson

Noes (1): Hudson

Absent (0)

Special Committee on Tourism, Chairman Seitz reporting:

Mr. Speaker: Your Special Committee on Tourism, to which was referred **SCR 21**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (8): Barnes, Fountain Henderson, Lonsdale, Morse, Nickson-Clark, Sassmann, Seitz and Smith (155)

Noes (1): Matthiesen

Absent (0)

Mr. Speaker: Your Special Committee on Tourism, to which was referred **SCR 27**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (8): Barnes, Fountain Henderson, Lonsdale, Morse, Nickson-Clark, Sassmann, Seitz and Smith (155)

Noes (1): Matthiesen

Absent (0)

Mr. Speaker: Your Special Committee on Tourism, to which was returned **SS#2 SB 964**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass with House Committee Substitute No. 2** by the following vote:

Ayes (8): Barnes, Fountain Henderson, Lonsdale, Morse, Nickson-Clark, Sassmann, Seitz and Smith (155)

Noes (1): Matthiesen

Absent (0)

Committee on Transportation Infrastructure, Chairman Buchheit-Courtway reporting:

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Transportation Infrastructure, to which was referred **HCR 39**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (7): Amato, Buchheit-Courtway, Burger, Hinman, Sharpe (4), Van Schoiack and Woods

Noes (3): Mosley, Myers and Phifer

Present (1): Copeland

Absent (3): Bangert, Marquart and Murphy

Committee on Fiscal Review, Chairman Houx reporting:

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Fiscal Review, to which was referred **SS SCS HCS HBs 2134 & 1956, as amended**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (6): Baringer, Fogle, Houx, Hudson, Kelly (141) and Owen

Noes (0)

Absent (1): Pollitt

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Fiscal Review, to which was referred **HCS SB 1039**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (4): Houx, Hudson, Kelly (141) and Owen

Noes (2): Baringer and Fogle

Absent (1): Pollitt

Committee on Rules - Legislative Oversight, Chairman Knight reporting:

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Rules - Legislative Oversight, to which was referred **HCS HBs 2555 & 2108**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (9): Buchheit-Courtway, Burger, Hudson, Knight, Lavender, Mann, McGirl, Owen and Schnelting

Noes (0)

Absent (1): Bosley

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Rules - Legislative Oversight, to which was referred **HCS SS SB 898**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (7): Buchheit-Courtway, Burger, Hudson, Knight, McGirl, Owen and Schnelting

Noes (2): Lavender and Mann

Absent (1): Bosley

REFERRAL OF SENATE BILLS

The following Senate Bill was referred to the Committee indicated:

HCS SS SB 898 - Fiscal Review

REFERRAL OF SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS - RULES

The following Senate Concurrent Resolutions were referred to the Committee indicated:

SCR 21 - Rules - Regulatory Oversight
SCS SCRs 24 & 25 - Rules - Legislative Oversight
SCR 27 - Rules - Regulatory Oversight

REFERRAL OF SENATE BILLS - RULES

The following Senate Bills were referred to the Committee indicated:

SS SCS SB 735 - Rules - Administrative Oversight
SS SB 751 - Rules - Administrative Oversight
HCS#2 SS#2 SB 964 - Rules - Legislative Oversight
SS SB 1111 - Rules - Legislative Oversight
SB 1388 - Rules - Legislative Oversight

RE-REFERRAL OF SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS - RULES

The following Senate Concurrent Resolutions were re-referred to the Committee indicated:

SCR 21 - Rules - Administrative Oversight

SCR 27 - Rules - Administrative Oversight

RE-REFERRAL OF SENATE BILLS - RULES

The following Senate Bills were re-referred to the Committee indicated:

SS#2 SCS SBs 754, 746, 788, 765, 841, 887 & 861 - Rules - Administrative Oversight

HCS#2 SS SCS SB 835 - Rules - Administrative Oversight

SS SB 890 - Rules - Administrative Oversight

HCS SS SCS SB 1351 - Rules - Administrative Oversight

MESSAGES FROM THE GOVERNOR

May 7, 2024

TO THE CHIEF CLERK OF THE
HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
102ND GENERAL ASSEMBLY
SECOND REGULAR SESSION
STATE OF MISSOURI

Herewith I return to you **House Committee Substitute for House Bill No. 2016** entitled:

AN ACT

To appropriate money for the supplemental purposes for the expenses, grants, refunds, and distributions of the several departments and offices of state government and several divisions and programs thereof, and to transfer money among certain funds, to be expended only as provided in Article IV, Section 28 of the Constitution of Missouri for the fiscal period ending June 30, 2024.

On May 7, 2024, I approved said **House Committee Substitute for House Bill No. 2016**.

Respectfully submitted,

/s/ Michael L. Parson
Governor

May 7, 2024

TO THE CHIEF CLERK OF THE
HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
102ND GENERAL ASSEMBLY
SECOND REGULAR SESSION
STATE OF MISSOURI

Herewith I return to you **Senate Substitute for House Bill No. 2287** entitled:

AN ACT

To repeal sections 135.713, 161.670, 168.021, and 571.010, RSMo, and to enact in lieu thereof seven new sections relating to elementary and secondary education.

On May 7, 2024, I approved said **Senate Substitute for House Bill No. 2287**.

Respectfully submitted,

/s/ Michael L. Parson
Governor

Having been returned from the Governor with his approval, **HCS HB 2016** and **SS HB 2287** were delivered to the Secretary of State by the Chief Clerk of the House.

ADJOURNMENT

On motion of Representative Patterson, the House adjourned until 10:00 a.m., Thursday, May 9, 2024.

COMMITTEE HEARINGS

ETHICS

Thursday, May 9, 2024, 11:30 AM, House Hearing Room 4.

Portions of the hearing may be closed under Article III, Sections 18 and 20, of the Constitution of Missouri, House Rule 37, House Resolution 85, and Sections 610.021(1), (3), (13) and (14) to discuss House Ethics Complaint 24-01.

Portions of this meeting may be closed under the authority of Article III, Sections 18 and 20, of the Missouri Constitution, the House Rules and Resolutions governing the Committee on Ethics, and RSMo § 610.21(3).

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Monday, May 13, 2024, 12:00 PM, House Hearing Room 5.

Executive session will be held: HR 3899

FISCAL REVIEW

Thursday, May 9, 2024, 9:45 AM, House Hearing Room 4.

Executive session may be held on any matter referred to the committee.

Pending bill referral.

FISCAL REVIEW

Friday, May 10, 2024, 8:00 AM, House Hearing Room 4.

Executive session may be held on any matter referred to the committee.

Pending bill referral.

JOINT COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT

Tuesday, May 14, 2024, 9:00 AM, Joint Hearing Room (117).

Executive session may be held on any matter referred to the committee.

Quarterly Investment Report, legislative update, and staff update. Executive session may follow.

A vote may be taken to close the meeting pursuant to section 610.021(3), RSMo, and section 610.021(13), RSMo, relating to personnel matters.

Amended to include market update.

AMENDED

RULES - ADMINISTRATIVE OVERSIGHT

Thursday, May 9, 2024, 9:45 AM, House Hearing Room 3.

Executive session may be held on any matter referred to the committee.

Pending bill referral.

RULES - LEGISLATIVE OVERSIGHT

Thursday, May 9, 2024, 1:45 PM, House Hearing Room 3.

Executive session will be held: HCS SS#2 SB 862, SCS SCR 24 & 25

Executive session may be held on any matter referred to the committee.

Pending bill referral.

RULES - REGULATORY OVERSIGHT

Thursday, May 9, 2024, 2:45 PM, House Hearing Room 3.

Public hearing will be held: HR 4266

Executive session will be held: HR 4266

Executive session may be held on any matter referred to the committee.

SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC POLICY

Friday, May 10, 2024, 9:30 AM, House Hearing Room 7.

Public hearing will be held: SS SB 1296

HOUSE CALENDAR

SEVENTY-FIRST DAY, THURSDAY, MAY 9, 2024

HOUSE JOINT RESOLUTIONS FOR PERFECTION

HCS HJR 75 - Griffith

HCS HJR 131 - Sparks

HJR 87 - Black

HCS HJR 92 - Hovis

HJR 134 - Burger

HOUSE BILLS FOR PERFECTION

HCS HB 2541 - Hurlbert

HCS HB 2612 - Byrnes

HB 2083 - Gregory

HB 2331 - Houx

HB 2381 - Brown (16)
HCS HB 1708 - Schnelting
HB 2380 - Brown (16)
HCS HB 1563 - Kelley (127)
HCS HB 2079 - Brown (149)
HCS HB 2412 - Sassmann
HCS HBs 2523, 2367 & 2470 - Billington
HCS HB 1427 - McGirl
HCS HBs 1804 & 1435 - Black
HCS HB 1447 - Lewis (6)
HB 1451 - Veit
HCS HB 1946 - Shields
HCS HB 2453 - Francis
HCS HBs 2464 & 2460 - Butz
HCS HB 1534 - Baringer
HCS HBs 1520, 1519, 2355 & 2357 - Hudson
HCS HB 2319 - Owen
HCS HB 1428 - McGirl
HCS HBs 1434 & 1491 - Haley
HB 1512 - Murphy
HB 1617 - Seitz
HCS HBs 1961 & 2197 - Riley
HB 2141 - Baker
HCS HB 2348 - Hovis
HCS HB 2669 - Diehl
HB 1628 - Wright
HB 2143 - Seitz
HCS HB 1490 - Griffith
HCS HBs 1993, 1855, 1426 & 2157 - Gallick

HOUSE BILLS FOR PERFECTION - INFORMAL

HCS HB 1484 - Christ
HCS HB 1619 - Seitz
HB 1653 - Roberts
HB 1668 - Matthiesen
HB 1730 - Amato
HCS HB 2206 - West
HCS HB 2445 - McMullen
HCS HBs 2632 & 1446 - Hausman
HB 2798 - O'Donnell
HCS HB 2905 - Shields
HCS#2 HB 2184 - Haffner
HCS HBs 2824 & 1723 - Stephens
HB 2631 - Hausman
HCS HB 2936 - Thomas

HCS HB 1690 - Reedy
HB 2457 - Justus
HCS HB 1517 - Murphy
HB 1660 - Hausman
HCS HB 1673 - Matthiesen
HCS HB 1763 - Hicks
HCS HB 1813 - Riggs
HCS HB 1830 - McMullen
HCS HBs 1955 & 2257 - Hardwick
HCS HB 1959 - Riley
HCS HB 1975 - Stinnett
HB 1980 - Hinman
HCS HB 1986 - Thompson
HCS HB 1988 - Amato
HCS HB 2077 - Smith (155)
HB 2418 - Diehl
HCS HB 2547 - Christ
HCS HB 2851 - Sharpe (4)
HCS HB 2148 - Dinkins
HCS HB 2317 - Knight
HB 2701 - Copeland
HB 2727 - Parker
HB 2728 - Parker
HB 2737 - Butz
HCS HB 2794 - Bangert
HB 1406 - Billington
HCS HB 1440 - Dinkins
HB 1627 - Wright
HB 1632 - Pouche
HB 1724 - Falkner
HCS HB 1800 - Copeland
HCS HB 1836 - McMullen
HCS HB 1925 - Morse
HB 1937 - Owen
HCS HBs 1990 & 2135 - Gallick
HCS HBs 2034 & 2081 - Sassmann
HCS HB 2056 - Keathley
HCS HB 2146 - McGaugh
HCS HB 2314 - Brown (149)
HCS HB 2524 - Knight
HCS HB 2552 - Schulte
HB 2578 - Van Schoiack
HB 2788 - Keathley
HCS HB 2862 - Falkner
HCS HB 1837 - McMullen
HCS HB 1957, with HA 1, pending - Haffner

HB 2063 - Owen
HCS HB 1630, with HA 1, pending - Pouche
HB 2291 - Davidson
HCS HBs 1477 & 1437 - Sharp (37)
HCS HB 1725 - O'Donnell
HCS HBs 2183 & 2529 - Hausman

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS FOR THIRD READING

HCR 50 - Smith (163)
HCR 40 - Baringer
HCS HCR 36 - Barnes

HOUSE BILLS FOR THIRD READING

HCS HB 2489 - Murphy
HCS HB 1906 - Chappell
HCS HB 1480 - Christ
HCS HB 2896 - Amato
HCS HB 1795 - Hinman
HB 2240, (Fiscal Review 5/8/24) - Sharpe (4)

HOUSE BILLS FOR THIRD READING - CONSENT - INFORMAL

HB 2684 - Sharp (37)
HB 2852 - McGaugh
HB 1938 - Owen
HCS HB 1726 - O'Donnell
HB 1728 - O'Donnell
HB 1987 - Thompson
HCS HB 2086 - O'Donnell
HB 2248 - Francis
HCS HB 2414 - Casteel
HB 2491 - Sassmann
HCS HB 1504 - Bangert
HCS HB 2286 - Taylor (48)
HB 2570 - Bonacker
HB 1459 - Sharpe (4)
HB 1460 - Sharpe (4)
HB 1502 - Bangert
HB 1553 - Sassmann

SENATE JOINT RESOLUTIONS FOR THIRD READING

SS SCS SJR 71 - Hovis

SENATE BILLS FOR THIRD READING - CONSENT

SB 1453 - Knight

SENATE BILLS FOR THIRD READING

HCS SS SB 898, (Fiscal Review 5/8/24) - Hovis

SENATE BILLS FOR THIRD READING - INFORMAL

SS SB 895 - Brown (16)

HCS SS SCS SB 756, E.C. - Keathley

SS SB 802 - Gregory

HCS SS SCS SB 834 - Christofanelli

HCS SB 1363 - Reedy

HCS SB 1039 - Taylor (48)

SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS FOR THIRD READING

SCR 23 - Pollitt

HOUSE BILLS WITH SENATE AMENDMENTS

SS SCS HCS HBs 2134 & 1956, as amended, E.C. - Lewis (6)

SS HB 2062, as amended (Fiscal Review 5/8/24) - Brown (16)

HOUSE RESOLUTIONS

HR 4210 - Billington

ACTIONS PURSUANT TO ARTICLE IV, SECTION 27

HCS HB 1 - Smith (163)

CCS SS SCS HCS HB 2 - Smith (163)

CCS SCS HCS HB 3 - Smith (163)

CCS SCS HCS HB 4 - Smith (163)

CCS SS SCS HCS HB 5 - Smith (163)

CCS SCS HCS HB 6 - Smith (163)

CCS SCS HCS HB 7 - Smith (163)

CCS SS SCS HCS HB 8 - Smith (163)

CCS SCS HCS HB 9 - Smith (163)

CCS SCS HCS HB 10 - Smith (163)

CCS SCS HCS HB 11 - Smith (163)

CCS SS SCS HCS HB 12 - Smith (163)

CCS SCS HCS HB 13 - Smith (163)

HCS HB 17 - Smith (163)

SCS HCS HB 18 - Smith (163)

SS SCS HCS HB 19 - Smith (163)

SS SCS HCS HB 20 - Smith (163)